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INDEPEN DENT AUD]TOR'S REPORT

TO thE MCMbCTS Of A{ATTIURA NAGAR WASTE PROCESSING COilPANY LII'4ITED

Report on the audit of the financial staternents

Oplnfon

we have audited the financlat statements of MATHURA NAGAR wAsTE pRocEsstNc
COMPANY Ll^{fTED (the 'Compdny'), which comprise the bal.ance sheet as at 31 March 2024,
the statement of prolit and loss (including Other Comprehensive income), the statement of
changes in equity and the statement of cash ftows for ihe year then ended, and notes to the
financial statements, inctuding a summary of the significint accounting poticies and other
exptanatory informaffon.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the exptanations given to
us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies ,2013
('the Act")in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with the Companies
(lndian Accounting Standard) Rute, 2015, as amended ('lnd A5') and the other accounting
principtes generatly accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 fitarch
7074, and its toss, total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash ftows for the
year ended on that date.

Basfs for Opfnim

We conducted our audit of the financiat statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our
responsibitities under those Standards are further described in the auditor's responsibitities
for the audit of the financiat statements section of our report.

We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (lCAl) together with the independent requirements
that are retevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the
Cornpanles Act, 2013 and the Rutes made thereund€r, and we have futfiued our other ethkal.
responsibitities in accordance with these requirements and the lCAl's Code of Ethtcs.
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We betieve that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion on the financia[ statements.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to Note 2.01(c) in the financial statements, which describes the uncertainty
retated to the outcome of the ongoing titigation concerning the Company's project. As stated
in Note 2.01(c), these events or conditions, along with other matters as set forth in Note
2.01(c), indicate that a material uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on the
Company's abitity to continue as a going concern and preparation of Financiat statements on
Non'going concern basis. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Information Other than the Financial statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsibte for the preparation of other information. The
other information comprises the information inctuded in the board's report inctuding
annexures to boards report and sharehotder's information, but does not inctude the financiat
statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financiat statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conctusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibitity is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materia[ly inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowtedge obtained during the course of our audit, or
otherwise appears to be materiatly misstated.

lf, based on the work we have performed, we conctude that there is a material misstatement
of this other Information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements.

The Company's Board of Directors are responsibte for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of
the Act with respect to the preparation of these financiat statements that give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs, profit and other comprehensive income, changes in cash flows
and equity of the Company in accordance with accounting principtes generatty accepted in
India, inctuding the Indian Accounting Standards (lnd AS) specified under Section 133 of the
Act.

This responsibitity atso inctudes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregutarities; selection and apptication of



appropriate accounting poticies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonabte and
prudent; and design, imptementation and maintenance of adequate internat financiat
controts, that were operating effectivety for ensuring the accuracy and compteteness of the
accounting records, retevant to the preparation and presentation of the financiat statements
that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsibte for assessing the Company,s
abitity to continue as a going concern, disctosing, as appticabte, matters retated to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the Company or cease operations, or has no reatistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors of the Company are responsibte for overseeing the company's financial
reporting process.

Auditor's responsibility for the audit of the Financial statements

our objectives are to obtain reasonabte assurance about whether the financiat statements as
a whote are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor's report that inctudes our opinion. Reasonabte assurance is a high tevel of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individuatty or in the aggregate, they coutd reasonabty be expected to
inftuence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of this financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professionat judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We atso:

ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resutting from
fraud is higher than for one resutting from error, as fraud may invotve cottusion,
forgery, intentiona[ omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internaI controt.

Obtain an understanding of internal financial controts retevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section
143(3Xi) of the Act, we are also responsibte for expressing our opinion on whether the
company has adequate interna[ financiaI controts with reference to financiat
statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

Evatuate the appropriateness of accounting poticies used and the reasonabteness of
accounting estimates and related disctosures made by the Board of Directors.
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Conctude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Company's abitity to continue as a going concern. lf we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the
retated disctosures in the financiat statements or, if such disctosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conctusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evatuate the overatl presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financiat statements represent the
undertying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiatity is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individuatty or
in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonabty knowtedgeabte
user of the financial statements may be inftuenced. We consider quantitative materiality and
quatitative factors in (i) ptanning the scope of our audit work and in evatuating the resutts of
our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financiat
statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
ptanned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal controt that we identify during our audit.

We atso provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have comptied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them att
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where appticable, retated safeguards.

Report on other legal and Regulatory requirements

1) As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

(a) we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best
of our knowledge and betief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) in our opinion, proper books of account as required by taw have been kept by the
company so far as it appears from our examination of those books;

(c) the balance sheet, the statement of profit and [oss inctuding other comprehensive
income , the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash ftows deatt
with by this report are in agreement with the books of account:



(d) in our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements compty with the Indian Accounting
Standards notified under Section 133 of the Act. as amended:

(e) on the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on
31't March 2024 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disquatified as on 31't March 2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164 (2) of the Act; and

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controts over the financial
reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer our
separate report in Annexure "A". Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the
adequacy and operating effectiveness of the company's internal financiat controls
over financia[ reporting.

(g) In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the exptanations
given to us, the company has not paid remuneration to its directors during the year
and accordingty the provisions of section 197 of the Act are not appl.icabte.

(h) With respect to the other matters to be inctuded in the Auditor's Report in accordance
with Rute 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rutes, 2014, in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the exptanations given to us:

i. The Company has disctosed the impact of pending titigations as at 31 March
2024 on its financial position in its financial statements.

The Company did not have any long-term contracts inctuding derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses;

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

(a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowtedge and betief,
other than as disclosed in the notes to the financiat statements, no funds have
been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the company to or in any
other person or entity, inctuding foreign entity ("lntermediaries"), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary
shat[:

. directty or indirectty tend or invest in other persons or entities identified
in any manner whatsoever ("uttimate Beneficiaries") by or on behatf of
the company; or

o provid€ any guarantee, security or the (ike on behaLf of the uttimate
Beneficiaries:

ii.
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(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowtedge and betief,
other than as disctosed in the notes to the financial statements, no funds have
been received by the company from any person or entity, inctuding foreign
entity ("Funding Parties"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing
or otherwise, that the company shatt, whether, directty or indirectty, tend oi
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behatf of the Funding Party ("Uttimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behal,f of the Uttimate Beneficiaries ; and

(c) Based on our audit procedures that we have been considered reasonabte and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has
caused us to betieve that the representations provided by the management
under sub-clause (a) and (b) above contain any material misstatement.

(d) The Company has not declared any dividend during the year.

(e) Based on our examination, which inctuded test checks, the Company has used
accounting software for maintaining its books of account for the financial year
ended March 31, 2024 which has a feature of recording audit trait (edit tog)
facitity and the same has operated throughout the year for att retevant
transactions recorded in the software. Further, during the course of our audit we
did not come across any instance of the audit trait feature being tampered with.

As proviso to Rute 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is appticabte
from Apri[ 1,2023, reporting under Rute 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rutes, 2014 on preservation of audit trait as per the statutory
requirements for record retention is not appticabte for the financiat year ended
March 31,2024.

Z) As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (the 'Order') issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in Annexure
'B' to this Report, a statement on the matters specified in para 3 and 4 of the said Order,
to the extent appticabte.

For G.L.KOTHARI & Co.,
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No: 0014455

<-"__:::4.-

CA.G.L.KOTHARI
Proprietor
Membership No.: 025481
U Dl N : 24025481 BKCPFZT 352

Ptace: Bangatore
Date:27/0512024



Annexure "A" to the Independent Auditor,s Report

(Referred to in paragraph 2(A)(f) under 'Report on other tegat and regutatory requirements'
section of our report to the Members of IvIATHUM NAGAR wAsTE pnoces-slNc coMpANy
LIMITED of even date)

Report on the internal financial controls over financial reporting under clause (i) of sub -
section 3 of section 143 of the companies Act, 2013 ("the Act,,)-

We have audited the internat financiat controts over financial reporting of Iv{ATHURA NAGAR
WASTE PROCESSING COMPANY LIMITED ("the Company") as at March 31, 2024, in
conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on
that date.

In our opinion, the Company has, in att material respects, adequate internal financial controts
with reference to financial statements and such internal financial controts were operating
effectivety as at 31 March 2024, based on the interna[ financiat controts with reference to
financia[ statements criteria estabtished by the Company considering the essentiaI
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internat Financiat
Controts Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
(the "Guidance Note").

Management's responsibility for internal financial controls

The board of directors of the Company is responsibte for estabtishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal contro[ over financiat reportlng criteria estab-tished by
the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of lnternal Financiat Controls over Financiat Reporting issued by the lnstitute of
Chartered Accountants of India ('lCAl'). These responsibititi-es inctude the design,
imptementation and maintenance of adequate internat financiat controts that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderty and efficient conduct of its business, inctuding adherenc6
to company's poticies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds
and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timety
preparation of retiable financiat information, as required under the Companies Act. 2013.

Auditors' responsibi lity

Our responsibitity is to express an opinion on the internat financiat controts over financial
reporting of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of InternaI FinanciaI Controts Over FinanciaI Reporting (the
"Guidance Note") issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the stan?aids



on auditing prescribed under Section 143 (10) of the Companies Act,2013, to the extent
appticabte to an audit of internal financiat controts and, both issued by the Institute of
chartered Accountants of India. Those standards and the guidance note require that we
compty with ethical requirements and pl.an and perform the audit to obtain reasonabte
assurance about whether adequate internal financiat controts over financial reporting were
estabtished and maintained and if such controts operated effectivel.y in att materiat resp=ects.

Our audit invotves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness.
Our audit of internal financiat controls over financiaI reporting inctuded obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controts over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness
of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures setected dLpend on the
auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement in the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We betieve that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internat financial. control system over financial
reporting.

A,leaning of internal financial controls over financial reporting

A company's internal financiat controt ou"r. finuncial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonabte assurance regarding the retiabitity of financiat reporting anO the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generatty
accepted accounting principtes. A company's internaI financiat control over financiat
reporting inctudes those poticies and procedures that (i) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detai[, accuratety and fairty reftect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (ii) provide reasonabte assurance that transactions
are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generalty accepted accounting principtes, and that receipts and expenditures of the company
are being made onty in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the
company; and (iii) provide reasonabte assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that coutd have a
material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controts over financial reporting,
inctuding the possibitity of cottusion or improper management of override of controts,



materia[ misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Atso,
projections of any evatuation of the internal financiat controts over financiat reporting to
future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over finantiat
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the poticies or procedures may deteriorate.

For G.L.KOTHARI & Co.,
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No: 0014455

CA.G.L.KOTHARI
Proprietor
Membership No.: 025481
UDI N : 2402548 1 BKCPFZT 352

Ptace: Bangatore
Date : 27 /05/2024



Annexure - B to the Independent Auditors' Report

Referred to in paragraph 2 under "Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements"
Section of our report to the members of MATHURA NAGAR WASTE PROCESSTNG COMPANY
LIMITED of even date.

Based on the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting a true and fair view on
the financial statements of the Company and taking into consideration the information and
explanations given to us and the books of account and other records examined by us in the
norma[ course of audit, we report that:

(i) In respect of company's Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangibte Assets:

a) A) As per the information and exptanations given to us, since the company does
not have Property, Ptant and Equipment and Intangibte Assets. Accordingty, the
provisions of ctause 3(i) of the order are not appticabte.

(ii) a) The Company does not hotd any Inventory. Accordingty, the provisions of ctause 3(ii)(a)
of the Order are not appticable.

b) According to the information and exptanations given to us, and the records
examined by us, the Company has not been sanctioned any working capital. Limits
aggregating to more than five crores by banks or financiat institutions on the
basis of security of current assets at any point of time of the year. Hence
reporting under paragraph 3(ii)(b) of the Order does not arise.

(iii) a) The Company has granted [oan, secured or unsecured to companies, firms,
Limited Liabitity Partnerships (LLPs) or other parties covered in the register
maintained under Section 189 of the Act, and details for the same are as foltows:

A. Loans or Advances and Guarantees or Security to other parties :

(Amount in Rs. '000)

Aggregate
amount during
the FY

Balance outstanding
at the balance
sheet

Chahet Infrastructure
Limited

Ultimate
Hotding
Company

64.596.77 60.s96.77

b) According to the information and exptanations given to us, and the records
examined by us, the investments made, guarantees provided, security and the
terms and conditions of the grant of at[ loans and advances in the nature of loans
and guarantees provided are prejudiciaI to the company's interest.



c) In our opinion and according to information and exptanation given to us, in
respect of loans and advances in the nature of [oans, the company has stipul.ated
the terms and conditions, the toan was given for the period of 10 years with
interest. The party has defautted the payment of interest and not been abte to
repay the principle amount due to inadequate cash ftows and financiat position of
the company.

d) According to the information and explanations given to us, and the records
examined by us, the loan given to SPML Infra Limited amounting to Rs.60,596.77
thousands is overdue.

e) According to the information and explanations given to us, and the records
examined by us, there is no loan or advance in the nature of loan granted which
has falten due during the year, has been renewed or extended or fresh loans
granted to settte the overdues of existing loans given to the same parties, Hence
reporting under paragraph 3(iii)(e) of the Order does not arise.

f) According to the information and exptanations given to us, and the records
examined by us, the company has not granted loans or advances in the nature of
loans repayabte on demand.

(iv) According to the information and exptanations given to us, and the records
examined by us, in respect of loans, investments, guarantees, and security, the
provisions of sections 185 and 186 of the Companies Act have been comptied
with.

The Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to
76 of the Act and the companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as
amended). Accordingty, the provisions of ctause 3(v) of the Order are not
appticabte.

To the best of our knowtedge and betief, the Central Government has not
specified maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the
Act, in respect of Company's products/services. Accordingty, the provisions of
ctause 3(vi) of the Order are not appticabte.

According to the information and exptanations given to us, in respect of statutory
dues:

Amounts deducted/ accrued in the books of account in respect of undisputed
statutory dues inctuding goods and services tax, provident fund, emptoyees' state
insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise,
vatue added tax, cess and other material statutory dues have been generatty
regutarly deposited by the company with the appropriate authorities.

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

a)



b)

c)

No undisputed amounts payabte in respect
Insurance, Income tax, 5aIes tax, Service
Service tax, Customs duty, Excise duty Cess
arrears as at 31st March 2Q24 f or a period of
they become payable.

of Provident fund, Employees State
tax, Vatue Added Tax, Goods and
and other material statutory dues in
more than six months from the date

viii)

There are no statutory dues referred to in sub-ctause (a), which have not been
deposited on account of dispute.

There were no transactions relating to previousty unrecorded income that have
been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments
under the Income Tax Act. 1961.

(ix) a) ln our opinion and according to the information and exptanations given to us, the
company has not defautted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the
payment of interest thereon to any lender, hence reporting undei paragraph
3(ix)(a) of the Order does not arise.

b) In our opinion and according to the information and exptanations given to us, The
Company has not been dectared witfut defautter by any Oant< or financiaI
institution or government or any government authority.

c) In our opinion and according to the information and exptanations given to us, the
company has applied term loans for the purpose for which the toans were
obtained.

d) In our opinion and according to the information and exptanations given to us, the
funds raised on short term basis have not been utitized for tong term purposes.

e) In our opinion and according to the information and exptanations given to us, the
company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to
meet the obtigations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures.

t) In our opinion and according to the information and exptanations given to us, the
company has not raised toans during the year on the ptedge of securities hetd in
its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies.

(x) a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company did not raise any money by way of initiat pubtic offer oi further pubtic
offer (inctuding debt instruments) and hence, reporting under this paragraph
3(x)(a) of the order is not appticabte.

b) In our opinion and according to the information and exptanations given to us, the
Company has not made any preferentiat attotment or private ptacement of shares
or convertibte debentures (futly, partiatty or optionally convertibte) during the
year. Accordingty, paragraph 3 (x) (b) of the order is not appticabte.



(xi) a) To the best of our knowtedge and according to the information and exptanations
given to us, no fraud by the Company or no material fraud on the Company by any
person has been noticed or reported during the year. Accordingty, paragraph i
(xi) (a) of the Order is not appticable.

b) Since there is no fraud by the Company or no material fraud on the Company by
any person has been noticed or reported during the year, paragraph 3 (xi) (b) of
the Order is not applicable.

c) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations
given to us, the provisions relating to whistte-btower mechanism is not appticabte
to the Company. Accordingty, paragraph 3 (xi) (c) of the Order is not appIicabte.

(xii) ln our opinion and according to the information and exptanations given to us, the
Company is not a nidhi company. Accordingty, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not
appticable.

(xiii) According to the information and exptanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, transactions with the retated parties
are in comptiance with sections 177 and 188 of the Act where appticabte and
detaits of such transactions have been disctosed in the financial statements as
required by the appticabte Indian accounting standards.

(xiv) In our opinion and according to the information and exptanations given to us, the
internaI audit provisions are not appticabte to the Company. Accordingty,
paragraph 3(xiv) of the Order is not appticabte.

(xv) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not entered into
non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with its directors.
Hence provisions of section 192 of Companies Act, 2013 are not appticabte to the
Company.

(xvi) a) In our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under section 45-lA of
the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Hence, reporting under ctause 3(xvi)(a) and
(b) of the Order is not appticabte.

ln our opinion, the company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financiat or
Housing Finance activities without a vatid Certificate of Registration (CoR) from
the Reserve Bank of India as per the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934;

In our opinion, the company is not a core investment company (as defined in the
Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) and accordingty
reporting under ctause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not appticabte.

ln our opinion, the Group has no ClC, hence reporting under this ctause 3(xvi)(d)
wi[[ not arise.

b)

c)

d)



(xvii) The Company has incurred cash loss of Rs. 160.33 thousand during the financial year
covered by our audit but has incurred cash loss Rs. 650.42 thousand toss during the
immediatety preceding financia[ year..

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the
year.

(xix) On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of rea(isation of
financial assets and payment of financiat tiabitities, other information accompanying
the financial statements and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Managemenl
ptans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions,
nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to betieve-that any materiat
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that Company is not
capabte of meeting its tiabitities existing at the date of batante sheet as and when
they fatt due within a period of one year from the batance sheet date. We, however,
state that this is not an assurance as to the future viabitity of the Company. We
further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the 

-date 
of the audit report

and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that att tiabitities fatting due
within a period of one year from the batance sheet date, witt get dischargeO by tfre
Company as and when they fatt due.

(xx) Since the provisions of Corporate Sociat Responsibitity (CSR) of Companies Act, 2013
are not appticabte to the company, the reporting under ctause 3(xx)(a) and 3(xx)(b) of
the Order is not appticable for the year.

(xxi) The financia[ statements are not consotidated financiat statements, accordingly,
reporting under paragraph 3(xxi) of the order is not appticabte.

For G.L.KOTHARI & Co.,
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No: 0014455

_--..-:,'':=i:=----

CA.G.L.KOTHARI
Proprietor
Membership No.: 025481
U Dl N : 24025481 BKCPFZT 352

Ptace: Bangatore
Date : 27 /05/2024



IVIATHURA NAGAR WASTE PROCESSING COMPANY LIMITED

CIN: U90001 KA2010PLCl 1 9486

Registered Office: Golden Enclave, Corporate Block, Tower C,
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The notes are an integrat part of these financial statement

5ummary of Significant accounting policies
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As per our RePort of even date.

For G.L.KOTHARI & Co.,

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No.001445 S
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\--

CA G,L.KOTHARI 
\

Proprietor
MembershiP No' 025481

Ptace: Bangatore

Date:77 /05/2024
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For and on behatf of the board

(Ra

DIN : 07 4686

Ptace: Bangalore
Date;77 /0512074

,
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. r-r1 111-., tr 11*,r ,-.-!f-
(Subhash Kumar Jainf

Director
DIN:02838708

"t\

iGnooil

ln

Partic u lars Note No,
As at

31st March 2024

As at
31st March 2023

ASSETS

Non-current assets

(a) Financial assets
- lnvestments
- Loans
- Other financial assets

Current assets

(a) Financial assets
- Trade Receivables
- Cash and Cash Equivalents
- Other current financial Assets

(b) Current lncome tax Receivabte (Net)

TOTAL ASSETS

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity
(a) Equity Share capitat
(b) Other Equity

Total equity

LIABILITIES

Non-cLrrrent tiabitities
(a1 Financia[ [iabitities
- Borrowings
(b) Deferred tax tiabilities (Net)

Current liabilities
(a) Financia[ liabitities
- Borrowings
- Trade payabtes

- Dues to Micro and Smatl enterprises
- Dues to others

(bl Other current tiabitities

Total liabilities

5

4
5

6

R

'18

9

10

270.

70

233.98

270.76

1 ,093.50
885. 1 s

1,9r8.65

L24sA1

236.68

1 ,093.50
538.61

42, 1 53.08
606.57

44.39'.t .71

44.628.39

56, 1 93.00
(62,289.70\

56, 1 93.00
(19,462.71\

095 36,730.29

11

18

12
,1?

14

3,576.55
7,460.48

3,192.36
2,557.18

6.O37.O 5,749.54

2,168.06

113.92

27.1C

2,107.58

25.93
'15.05

2,309.08

8,346.11
2,249.41

2.148.56

7,898. 1C

44,628.39



ln

Particulars Notes
For the year ended
31st March 2024

For the year ended
31st March 2023

Revenue from Operations
Income

Total Income

Total Expenses

lProfit/(loss) before exceptionaI items and tax from continuing
I operations
lExceotionaI ltems

lProfit/(loss) before tax from continuing operations

Tax Expenses

Current tax
Earlier year Income Tax
Deferred tax

Income Tax Expense

Profit for the year from Continuing Operations

Other Comprehensive Income (OCl)

Other comprehensive income not to be reclassified to profit or loss in
Re-Measurement gains on defined benefit plans

lncome Tax effect

Other Comprehensive Income for the year

Total Comprehensive Income for the year
Earnings per share - Basic and Dituted (Nominal vatue Rs. 1 per share)

Finance Cost

'15

16

IT

18

21

70.75 7,425"43

70.75 7.475.43

384.19
a7 -tRA 17

517.46

61 ,105.t4

42.768.36 61.618.70

(42,697.61) (54,192.77

(42,697.61 (54,192.77

226.09
(96.70\ (86.09

129.39 (86.0e)

62.827.OO\ (54.106.68)

(42,827.OO)

(0.76)

( s4, 1 06.6 8)

(1 .74)

MATHURA NAGAR WASTE PROCESSING COMPANY LIMITED

CIN: U9000 1 KA20 1OPLC1 1 9 486
Registered Office: Golden Enclave, Corporate Block, Tower C, 3rd floor, HAL Otd Airport Road, Bengaluru - 560017

Statement of Profit and Loss for the vear ended lv{arch 31.2024

The notes are an integral part of these financiat statement

Summary of Significant account'ing poticies

As per our Report of even date.

For G.L.KOTHARI & Co,

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.001445 S

CA G.L.KOTHARI
Proprietor
Membership No. 025481

Ptace: Banga[ore

Date: 27 /05/2024

For and on behalf of the board

,Yi.o, \
A\i x"naoir

{.i 16 r..t1,,., y- 
"-r. 

or d.^r
(Subhash Kumar Jain)
Director

DIN : 02838708
Directdr
DIN : 01434686

Ptace: Bangatore

Oate:27 /05/2024



MATHUM NAGAR WASTE PROCESSING COMPANY LIMITED
CIN: U90001 KA201oPLC1 1 9486
Registered Office: Golden Enclave, Corporate Block, Tower C, 3rd floor, HAL Old Airport Road, Bengaluru - 560017

Statement of Cash flows for the year ended March 31,2024
tn

Particulars For the year ended
3fst March 2024

For the year ended
31st March 2023

Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before tax from Continuing Operations

Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows:
Liabitities No Longer Required writren back

lmpairemenr Cost on financiat assets

Loss on sale of investment
Provision for Doubtfut receivabte

Finance Expenses

Interest Received

(42,697,61)

1.70

42,153.09

384.19
(36.78)

(54,192.771

(7,396.46\
60,596.77

512.46
(23.771

lWorking capital adjustments:
(Decrease) / Increase in Other f inanciaI assL.ts

{Decrease}/lncrease in Loans
(Decrease l/ Increase in Trade Recetvabtes

{Decrease )llncrease in Trade Payables
(Decrease )/lncrease in Other current financjat Iiabitities
(Decrease )/lncrease in Other current liabitities
{Decrease)/lncrease in Other non current financiat assets

Income tax paid I (Refund)

l.,let cash flows from operating activities

(195.41],

87.99

12.05
-0.00

(503.77)

( 1 8.40)
3,O97.87

25.93

3.25

0.01
(9s. l8
380.43

2,604.89
781 .12

285.05 3,385.0 1

Cash flow from investing activities
Proceed from sate of investment

Net cash flows used in investing activities

Cash flow from financing activities
Movement in equity component of preference snares
Proceed from Share Capitat
Proceeds from Borrowings

Finance Expense (Net)

1.00

1.00

384.19

60.48
(384. 1 9)

(86.09)
50,000.00

(52,428.67]'
(488.69)

Ner casn nows trom/(used ln) financing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equtvarents
Cash and cash equivatents at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (Refer Note Z)

60.4E

346.54
538.61

(3,003.4s)

382.56
1 56.05

885.1 5 538.61

tn from Financinq activities for the vear ended st March 2024

1st April 2023 Proceeds Repayment
Fair Value
Chanees

31st March 2024

Borrowings - Non Current Inctuding Current Maturities (Refer Note- 1 1 ) 3,192.36 384.19 3,576.55

lorrowings - Current (Refer Note-12) z,'t07.58 -60.48 2,168.06
5,299.94 -60.48 384.1 9 5.744.60

in Liability arising from Financing activities for the

1 st April 2022 Proceeds Repayment
Fair Value
Changes

31st March 2021

lorrowings - Non Current Inctuding Current Maturities (Refer Note-1 1 ) 2,850.32 342.04 3,192.36

lorrowinqs - Current (Refer Note'12 54.878.29 52,770.71 2,107.58
57,728.61 52,770.71 42.O4 5,299.94

As per our Report of even date

For G.L.KOTHARI & Co.,
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.001445 S

For and on behatf of the board

CA G.L.KOTHARI
Proprietor
Membership No. 025481

Ptace: Bangatore

Date:27105/2024

h

,Ncs"t
{REiQsh Kandoi)
Direc\
DIN : 0434686

Ptace: Bangatore

Date: 27 105/2024

{. 1n t",5o\ i. l < ".*- *-.'4',i^
(Subhash Kumar Jain)
Director

DIN : 02838708



/TAATHURA l.lAGAR WASTE PROCESSING cOMPANY LIMITED
CIN: U90001 KA20IOPLCl 1 9486
Registered Office: Golden Enclave, Corporate Block, Tower C, 3rd floor, HAL Otd Airport Road, Bengaluru - 560017
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31,ZOZ4

A) Equity Share Capital

B) Other Equity

Amount in

Farticulars As at
31st March 2024

As at
31st March 2023

Equity shares of Re 1 each issued, subscribed and fully paid
Batance at the begrnnlng ot the rcpor t-ing penod
Changes in equity share capitat due to prior period errors
Restated batance at the beginning of the current reporting period
3hange in Equity share capitat dunng current period

56, 1 93.00 56, 1 93.00

Batance at the end of the reporting period s6,1 93.00 56,1 93.00

For the vear ended 31st March 2O24

Reserves and Surplus

(Amount in '000)

Total

(19,462.71)
(42,826.99)

42,826,99)

Securities Premium
Account

95,267.O0

267.OO

Equity Components of
compound financial

instruments

as at lst April
it for the year

comprehensive income for the year, net of tax
Equity portion of compound financial instrument for the vear

11 ,717.37

as at 31st March 2024 11 ,717 ,37 (1 ,69 ,27 4 .O7 \

For the ended 3lst rilarch 2023

The notes are an integrat part of these financial statement

fu per our Report of even date.

For G.L.KOTHARI & Co.,
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.001445 S

CA G.L.KOTHARI

Proprietor
Membership No. 025481

Place: Bangatore

Datet 27 /05/2024

For and on behatf of the board

'.,.1. r,

$t,t' .-:

(Rajes\andoi)
Director '\

DIN : 07434686

Ptace: Eangatore

Datei 27 /05/7024

t-- 
.,-i..r1,-,-'. \ 1f.u.* -.'.,{.r.-,

(Subhash Kumar Jain)
Director

DIN : 02838708

t in'000)

Particu lars
Equity Components of
compound financial

instruments

Reserves

Retained earnings

lnd Surplus

F".*'1i";ffir;
Account

Total

Balance as at 1st April 2022
Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax
Equity portion of compound financiat instrument for the year
Total comprehensive income

11 ,717 .37 (72,340.41
(s4,106..67

(54,106.67

95,267.OO 34,643.96
(54,106.67.

(54,106.67
Balance as at 31st March 2023 11 ,717,37 (1 ,26,447.O8) 95,267.O0 19 462 71



MATHURA NAGAR WASTE PROCESSING COMPANY LIMITED
Notes to financial statements as at l arch 31 ,2024

I company background
Mathura Nagar Waste Processing Company Limited is a joint venture Company by M/s. SPML Infra Limited (SPML) & M/s. Krishi

Rasayan Private Limited (KRPL) and was incorporated on 1zth January, 2010 and it is a subsidiary of SPML. The Company's main

business is to undertake door to door cotlection, segregation, secondary cottection, transfer, transportation, processing and

disposat of Municipat sotid waste on 'design, buitd, operate, maintain and transfer' basis in the city of Mathura as per Concession

Agreemenr dt, 1Oth Aprit, 2010 executed among Mathura between Mathura Nagar Patlika; (ULB), Constructions and Design

Services, a Unit of Uttar Pradesh Jat Nigam; and the Company,The said Projects were cancelted by the company as the company

feets that Mathura Nagar Pattika had viotated the terms of the contract.The arbitration proceedings have been initiated.

2 Significant accounting policies

2.01 Basis of preparation and presentation
(a) Statement of compliance
These financiat statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (lnd AS) prescribed under Section 133 of
the Act read with Rule I of the Companjes (lndian AccountingStandards) Ru(es,2015 and retevant amendment rules issued there
ar!er.

Accounting poticies have been consistently applied except where a newty issued accounting standard is initialty adopted or a

revision to an existrng accounting standard requires a change in the accounting poticy hitherto in use.

(b) Basis of measurement
The financiat statements have been prepared on a historical cost convention and on an accruat basis, except for the fotlowing

material items that have been measured at fair value as required by retevant Ind AS:

i. Certain financiat assets and liabitities measured at fair value (refer accounting policy on financiat instruments) and

ii. Defined benefit and other tong-term emptoyee benefits.

(c) Going concern Concept and its impact on the company
Presently the company is not carrying any operations due the to the pending titigation of the project. The present status of the
litigation is, the arbitration proceedings are in progress. The company as detaited had made a ctaim for termination of project,

recovery of pending receivabte, compensation for toss of project etc. In this regard company has obtained the opinion from legal

councet, on the [ega( proceedings, as per the opinion the case may not be infavour of the company and accordingty the ctaims

made by the company may not be receivabte. Hence the management has conctuded that the going concern of the company has

affected. Further, considering the negative net worth and inadequate cash ftows of the company, the financiat statements have

not been prepared under the Going concern assumption and adjustments wherever necessary have been made to carry the
residuat value:

(i) assets at the tower of their cost and the estimated reatizable vatue (ii) tiabitities at their estimated payouts.

(d) Use of estimates and judgement
The preparation of financiat statements jn conformity with lnd AS requires management to make judgments, estimates and

assumptions that affect the apptication of accounting poticies and the reported amounts of assets, tiabilities, income and

expenses. Actual results may differ from these estjmates. Estimates and undertying assumptions are reviewed on a periodic basis.

Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized In the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods

affected.Refer note 23 for details of significant accounting judgements and assumptions.

(e) Current versus non-current classification
The Company presents assets and tiabitities in the batance sheet based on current/ non-current ctassification. An asset is treated
as current when it is:
- Expected to be reatised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycte,
- Hetd primarity for the purpose of trading,
- Expected to be reatised within twetve months after the reporting period, or
- Cash or cash equivatent untess restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a tiabitity for at least twetve months after the
reporting period.

Att other assets are ctassified as non-current.

A tiabitity is current when:
- lt is expected to be settted in normat operating cycte,
- lt is held primarity for the purpose of trading,
- lt is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or
- There is no unconditionat right to defer the setttement of the tiabitity for at teast twetve months after the reporting period.

The Company classifies atl other tiabitities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and tiabitities are classified as non-current assets and liabitities.

The operating cycte js the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their reatisation in cash and cash

equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycte.



A/iATHURA NAGAR WASTE PROCESSING COMPANY LIMITED
[,lotes to financial statements as at March 31,ZOZ4
?"O2 Properfy, plant and equipment"

under the previous GAAP (lndian GAAP), property, ptant and equipment were carried in the batance sheet at their carryrng varue
being the cost of acquisition or construction less accumutated de0reciation.

The cosl: ol property, piant and equipment inctudes frerght" duttes, raxes and other Incidentat expenses reiatlng to tne
acqulsitlon and Instal(ation of the respective assets. The present vatue of the expected cost for the decommissjoning of an asset
alter its use ls inctuded in the cost of the respective asset if the recognition criteria for a provision are met. Borrowtng costs
directty attributable to acquisition or construction of those assets which necessarity take a substantiat period of time to get ready
for their Intended use are caoitatizeci^

Advance paid towards the acquisition of assets outstanding at each balance sheet are shown under capitat advances. The cost of
property, plant and equipment not ready for their intended use before such date, are disclosed as capitat work in progress.
Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value:
The method of depreciation adopted and estimated usefut life of fixed assets rs enumerated below:

Asset Description Method Usefut life adopted Usefut life as per

Schedute ll to the
Companies Act, 2011

End user devlces, such as, desktops, taptops, etc
Furniture and fjttings

Office equipment5

Vehicles

WDV

WDV

WDV

WDV

3 years

1 0 years

5 years

8 Years

1 0 years

5 years

I Years

The management has identified usefut tife of the assets (tangibte), based on the tife as prescribed in Schedule il to the
companies Act, 20'13. Further the residual value is is estimated to be 5% of cost of asset,

2.03 lmpairment of non-financial assets
The Company assesses at each batance sheet date whether there is any indication that an asset or a group of assets complsrng a
cash-generating unit may be rmpaired. lf any such Indrcation exists, or when annuat impairment testing for an asset is required,
the Company estimates the asset's recoverabte amount. An asset's recoverabte amount is the higher of an asset's or cash-
Eenerating unit's (CGU) fair value tess costs of disposal and its value in use. Recoverabte amount is determined for an rndividuat
asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largety independent of those from other assets or groups or
assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverabte amount, the asset is constdered impaired and is
written down to its recoverabte amount.

In assessing vaiue ln use, the estimated future cash ftows are discounted to their present vatue using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the tirne value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fajr varue tess
costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. lf no such transactions can be identified, an aooroorrate
valuation modet is used- These calculations are corroborated by vatuation muttiptes, quoted share prices for pubticty traded
companres or other avaitable fair vatue indicators.

The Company bases its impairment catcutation on detaited budgets and forecast calcutations, which are prepared
separately for each of the cGUs to which the individuat assets are atlocated. These budgets and forecast catcutations generarry
cover a period of five years. For tonger periods, a long-term growth rate is catculated and apptied to project future cash flows
after the fifth year. To estimate cash ftow projections beyond periods covered by the most recent budgets/forecasts, the Group
extrapo(ates cash ftow projections in the budget using a steady or dectining growth rate for subsequent years, unless an
increasing rate can be justified. In any case, this growth rate does not exceed the tong-term average growth rate for the
products, industries, or country or countries in which the entity operates, or for the market in which the asset is used.

For assets exctuding goodwitt, an assessment is made at each reporting date to determjne whether there is an indicatton tnat
previousty recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. lf such indication exists, the Group estjmates the
asset's or CGU's recoverabte amount. A previously recognised impairment toss is reversed only if there has been a change tn the
assumptions used to determine the asset's recoverabte amount since the tast impairment loss was recognised. The reversat is
timited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverabte amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such



i.tATHURA NAGAR WASTE PROCESSING COMPANY LIMITED
l.iotes to financial statements as at March 31.ZOZ4
2,04 Revenuerecognition

Revenue ls recognised to the extent that it is probabte that the economic Denefits witt ftow to the Company and the revenue can
be retiabty measured, regardtess of when the payment is being made" Revenue is rneasured at the fair vatue of the constderatlon
recerved or receivabte, taking into account contractuatty defined terms of payment, net of taxes or duties coltected on behatf of
the government" Further, The Company uses significant judgments white determtnrng the transaction price attocated to
Der formance obttgations

The specifjc recognrtlon criteria described betow must aiso be met before revenue is recosntsed"

Other income
interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate (ElR). EIR is the rate that exactty discounts the estimated tuture
cash payments or receipts over the expected life of the financiat instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset or to the amortised cost of a financial tiabitity. when caicutating the effectrve Interest
rate, the group estimates the expected cash flows by considering atl the contractuat terms of the financiat instrument (tor
exampte, preDayment, extension, catt and simitar options) but does not consider the expected credit tosses. Interest lncome is
Inctuded tn fjnance income in the statement of.profit and toss.

Dividends
Revenue ts recognlsed when the Company's right to receive the payment ts estabtished, whlch ts generaliy when
snarehotders approve the divjdend.

2.05 Leases
Ind AS 1 16 requires tessees to determine the tease term as the non-cancetlabte period of a lease adjusted with any option to

2.06 Financiallnstruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financiat tiabitity or equity )nstrument
of another entity.

A Financial Assets
a) Classification
The company ctassifies its financial assets in the fottowrng measurement categones:

- those to be measured subsequentty at fair vatue (either through other comprehensive income, or through
profit or ioss), and

- ihose measured at amortised cost.
The ciassification depends on the entity's business modet for managing the financiai assets and the contractual terms of the cash
fIows.

For assets measured at fair vatue, gains and losses witt either be recorded in profit or toss or other comprehensive income. For
lnvestments in debt instruments, this witl depend on the business modet in which the investment is held. For investments rn
equlty insLrurnents, this witl depend on whether the company has made an irrevocabte etection at the time of jnjtiaL recoqnrtron
to account for the equity investment at fair value through other comprehensive income.

b) Initial recognition and measurement
Att financiat assets are recognised initiatty at fair vatue plus, in the case of financiat assets not recorded at fair vatue through
profit or toss, transaction costs that are attributabte to the acquisition of the financiat asset. purchases or sa(es of fjnancjaI
assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame estabtished by regutation or convention in the market ptace (regul.ar
way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Group commits to purchase or se[ the asset.

c) Subsequent measurement
Financiat assets carried at amortised g8!!: A financiat assets is measured at amortised cost if it is hetd within a business mooer
whose objective is to hotd asset in order to cotlect contractuat cash ftows and the contractuat, cash terms of the financral asset
give rise on specified dates to cash ftows that are sotely payments of principat and interest on the principal amount outstanding.
Interest income from these financial assets is accounted in profit or loss using the effective interest rate method. lmpa]rment
losses, forex gajn / loss and gain / loss on derecognition of financiat asset in this category is recognised in profit or toss.

Financial assets at fair vatue throuqh other comDrehensive income (FVTOCI): A financiat asset is measured at ryTocl, if it is hetd
withing a business model whose objective is achieved by both from collection of contractual cash flows and seuing the financial
assets, where the assets' cash ftows represent solety payments of principat and interest. Further equity jnstruments where the
company has made an irrevocable etection based on its business modet, to ctassify as rnstruments measured at Fwocl, are
measured subsequentty at fair vatue through other comprehensive jncome.

Debt instruments Movements in the carrying amount are taken through other comprehensive income (OCl), except for the
recognitjon of impairment gains or losses, interest revenue and foreign exchange galns and losses which are recognised in profit
and loss. When the financiat asset is derecognlsed, the cumutative gain or toss previousty recognised in ocl is rectassified from
equity to profit or loss and recognised. Interest income from these financiat assets is inctuded in other income using the effective
interest rate method.

Equity instruments - Movements in the carrying amount are taken to OCI and there is no subsequent reclassification of fair value
gains and tosses to profit or loss. Dividend from such investments are recognised in profit or ross.

Financial a$e!9 at fair vatue throuqh Drofit or toss (FWPL): A financiat asset which is not ctassifjed in any of the above categories
are subsequently fair vatued through profit or [oss. Att gains and tosses are recognised in profit or toss



MATHURA NAGAR WASTE PROCESSING COMPANY LIMITED
Notes to financial statements as at l{arch 31,ZOZ4

d) lmpairment of financial assets
The company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit tosses associated with its assets carried at amoruseo cost
and FWOCI debt instruments. The impairment methodotogy apptied depends on whether there has been a significant jncrease rn
credit risk. Note 35 detaits how the company determines whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade fecelvabtes, the company appties the simptified approach soecified by Ind AS .109 Financial Instruments" whtch requrres
expected tifetrme losses to be recognised from initiat recognition of the receivabtes.

el Derecognition of financial assets
A financ'at asset is Drimarity derecognised when:

B Financial liabilities
al Classification
The company ctassrfies rts ftnancral iiabitities in the fottowing measurement categories:
- those to be measured subsequentty at farr vatue through profit or loss, and
- tnose measureo at amortised cost.
The ctassification depends on the entity's business modet for managrng the financjat assets and the contractual terms of the cash
1(ows.

b) Initial recognition and measurement
The company recognises financial tiabitities when it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Att financraL
tjabitjties are recognized at fair vatue on initiat recognition. Transaction costs that are directty attributabte to the issue ot
financiat tiabitities, that are not at fair vatue through profit or toss, are reduced from the fair vatue on initiat recognition.
Transaction costs that are directly attrjbutab{e to the tssue of financiat tiabitities at fair vatue through profit or loss are expensed
in profit or toss.

c) Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financiaI tiabilities depends on their classification, as described betow:

Amortised cost: After initiat recognition, interest-bearing toans and borrowings are subsequentty measured at amortisecl cost
using the Eftective jnterest rate (ElR) method. Gains and tosses are recogntsed in profit or toss when the llabjLities are
derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is catcutated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integraL
part of the ElR. The EIR amortisation is inciuded as finance costs in the statement of profit and toss.

Financiat tiabitities at fair vatue throuqh profit or toss: Financiat tiabilities at fair vatue through profit or loss inctude financiat
tiabitities hetd for trading and financiat tiabitities designated upon initiat recognition as at fair vatue through profit or toss.
Financial tiabitities are ctassified as hetd for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This
category atso inctudes derivative financial instruments entered into by the company that are not designated as hedging
instruments in hedge retationships as defined by Ind AS'109. separated embedded derivatives are atso classified as hetd tor
trading untess they are designated as effective hedging instruments.

Gains or (osses on tiabitities hetd for trading are recognised jn the profit or loss.

Financiat tiabitities designated upon initial recognition at fair vatue through profit or toss are designated as such at the initiat
date of recognition, and onty if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For tiabitities designated as FVTPL, fair vatue gains/ tosses
attributabte to changes in own credit risk are recognized in OCl. These gains/ loss are not subsequentty transferred to Statement
of Profit and Loss. However, the company may transfer the cumutative gain or loss within equity. Att other changes in fair vatue
of such Liabitity are recognised in the statement of profit or loss. The company has not designated any financiat tiabitity as at fair
value throush orofit and loss.

Derecognition of financial Liabilities
A financiaL tiabitity is derecognised when the obtigation under the tiability is discharged or cancelted or expires. When an exlsrrng
financiat tiabitity is replaced by another from the same lender on substantiatly different terms, or the terms of an exrstrng
tiabitity are substantialty modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the originat liabitity and
the recognition of a new tiabitity. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or
(oss.
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C Financral guarantee contracts
The fai!- vaiue of financial guarantees is determined as the present vatue of the difference in net cash ftows berween tne
contractual oayments under the debt instrument and the Dayments that would be required wrthouI the guarantee or the
estimated amount rhat woutd be payabte to a third party for assuming tne obtigations.

(i) as Guarantor
Financlai guarantee contracts are recognised as a financiai tiabitity at the trime the guarantee ts issued. The iiabitity is inttiatty
measured at fal," vatue and subsequentty at the higher of the amount determlned in accordance with Ind AS 109 and the amount
jnrtiatty recogntsed less cumutative amortisation, where appropriate.

Where guarantees In relation to loans or orher payables of associates are provicjed for no compensatjon, the fajr vatues are
accounted for as contributions and recognised as Dart of the cost of the investment.

(ii) as Beneficiary
Financial guarantee contracts are recognised as a financiat asset at the time the guarantee ts taken. The asset rs injtjail.y

D Offsetting financial instruments
Financial assets and tiabitities are offset and the net amount is reported in the batance sheet where there is a tega[y enforceable
right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to sett(e on a net basis or reatise the asset and settLe the liaDitity
slmuttaneousty. The legalty enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in rne normar
course of business and in the event of defautt, insotvency or bankruptcy of the comapany or the counterparty.

2.07 Borrowings
Borrowings are initiatly recognised at fair vatue, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowrngs are subsequentty measured at
amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in
profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method. Fees Daid on the estabtjshment ot toan
facitities are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probabte that some or a[ of the facitity witt be
drawn down. In thjs case, the fee is deferred untit the draw down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it js proDabte
that some or alI of the facitity witt be drawn down, the fee is capitatised as a prepayment for tiquidity services and amoTr]seo
over the period of the facitity to which it relates.

Borrowings are removed from the batance sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired.
The difference between the carrying amount of a financial tiabitity that has been extinguished or transferred to another party
and the consideration paid, inctuding any non-cash assets transferred or liabitities assumed, is recognised in profit or toss as other
gains/ (losses).

Borrowings are ctassified as current tiabitities untess the company has an unconditionat right to defer setttement of the tiabitity
for at least 12 months after the reporting period. Where there is a breach of a material provision of a Long-term toan
arrangement on or before the end of the reporting period with the effect that the tiabi{ity becomes payabte on demand on the
reporting date, the entity does not ctassify the tiabitity as current, if the tender agreed, after the reporting period and before
the approvat of the financia{ statements for issue, not to demand payment as a consequence of the breach.

2.08 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directty attributabte to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarity takes a substantjal
period of time to get ready for its intended use or sate are capitatised as part of the cost of the asset. Att other borrowing costs
are expensed in the period in which they ociur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity Incurs rn
connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost atso includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an
adjustment to the borrowing costs.

2.09 Taxes

Current income tax
Current income tax assets and tiabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities. The tax rates and tax taws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantivety enacted, at the
reporting date in the countries where the company operates and generates taxabte income.

'Current income tax retating to items recognised outside profit or toss is recognised outside profit or toss (either in other
comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in corretation to the undertying transaction either in OCI or
directly in equity. Management periodicatly evatuates positions taken in the tax returns with resoect to situations in which
appticabte tax regutations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.
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Minimum atternate tax ('MAT') paid in a year is charged to the statement of profit and toss as cuTrent tax. The company
recognizes MAT credit available as an asset oniy to the extent that there 1s convincrng evidence that the company wrrr pav normar
income tax durlng the specified period, i"e., the penod for whjch MAT credit is a[owed to be carried forward. rn rne year In
which the company recognises MAT credit as an asset rn accordance with the Guidance Note on Accounting for Credit Avaitabte rn
respect of Minimum Alternative Tax under the Income tax Act, 1961, the said asset is created by way of credit to the statement
of profit and Loss and shown as'MAT Credit Entitiement'" The company reviews the'MAT credit entitlement,asser ar eacn
reportrng date and writes down the asset to the extent the comDany does not have convrncrng evloence that rt will Dav normat
tax during the specified perlod. Deferred tax asset is defined in Ind AS 12 to inctude the carry forward of unusecj tax credits. MAT
Credlts are rn the form ot unused tax credits that are carned forward by the company for a specified pertod of trme. Accordingty,
A4AT credit Entittement rs grouped with Deferred rax Asset (net) in the Batance sheer.

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is prouded using the tiabitity method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets ancj liabilittes and
their carrying amounts for financiat reporting purposes at the reportjng date.

'Deferred tax tiabilities are recognised for att taxabte temporary differences, except:
- when the deferred tax liabitity arises from the initiat recognrtion of goodwilt or an asset or tiabitity in a transaction that is

not a buslness combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxabte profjt or loss;- rn respect of taxabte temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests ln Jorntventures' when the timing of the reversat of the temporary differences can be controtted and it is probable that tne remporary
differences wttl not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for att deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it rs probabte that taxabte profit wiLt De avail.abte against
which the de'ductjbte temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utitised,
except:

" when the deferred tax asset retating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initiat recognition of an asset or
tiabitity in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accountlna
profit nor taxabte profit or loss;

'jn respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint
ventures, deferred tax assets are recognised onty to the extent that it is probabte that the temporary differences witI reverse in
the forese€'abte future and taxabte profit witt be avaitabte against which the temporary differences can be utitised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it ts no longer
probable that sufficient taxabte profit witt be avaitable to altow att or part of the deferred tax asset to be utitised. unrecognised
deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become Drobabte that
future taxabte profits witI attow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabitities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to appty in the year when the asset is reatised
or the liability is settted, based on tax rates (and tax taws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reportrng
date.

Deferred tax retating to items recognised outside profit or toss is recognised outside profit or toss (either in other comprehensive
income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the undertying transaction either in ocl or directtv in
equrty.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax tiabitities are offset if a tegatty enforceabte right exists to set off current tax assets aeajnst
current tax Liabitities and the deferred taxes retate to the same taxabte entity and the same taxation authority.

Tax benefits acqujred as part of a business cornbination, but not satisfying the criteria for separate recognition at that date, are
recognised subsequently if new information about facts and circumstances change. Acquired deferred tax benefits recognrsed
within the rTleasurement period reduce goodwilt related to that acquisition if they result from new information obtained about
facts and circumstances existing at the acquisition date. lf the carrying amount of goodwitt is zero, any remaining deferred tax
benefits are recognised in ocl/ capitat reserve depending on the principte exptained for bargain purchase gains. Att other
acqujred tax bc.nefits reatised are recognised in profit or loss.

2,10 Provisions and contingent liabilities
Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obtigation (tegat or constructive) as a result of a past evenr, rr rs
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits witl be required to settte the obtigation and a retiabte
estimate can be made of the amount of the obtisation.

lf the effect of the time vatue of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reftec6, wnen
appropriate, the risks specific to the tiabitity. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of tjme
is recognised as a finance cost.

Contingent liabilities recognised in a business combination
A contingent liabitity recognised in a business combination is initialty measured at its fair value. Subsequentty, it is measured at
the higher of the amount that woutd be recognised in accordance with the requirements for provisions above or the amount
initiatly recognised less, when appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised in accordance with the requirements for revenue
recognition.
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2.1 1 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and casn equlvaient in the batance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an ongtnal
maturity of three months or tess, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in vatue.

Cash flow statement
Cash fiows are reported using the indirect method, whereDy net profitl (toss) before tax ts adjusted for rhe effects of
transactlons of a non-cash nature and any deferrrats or accruats of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash ftows from
operating, rnvesting and financtng activjtjes of the company are segregated.

2.1 2 Convertible preference shares
Convertibte preference shares are separated into tiabitity and equity components based on the terms of the contract.

On lssuancc ol the convertibte preference shares, the fair vatue of the ijabitity component rs determined using a market rate for
an equivalent non-convertibte instrument. This amount is ctassified as a financiat tiability measured at amortised cosr (ner or
transaction costs, until lt is extinguished on conversion or redemptjon. The remainder of the proceeds is auocated to the
converslon option that is recognised and included in equity since conversion option meets Ind A5 32 criteria for fixed to fixed
c{assification. Transaction costs are deducted from equity, net of assocjated income tax. The carrying amount of the conversion
option is not remeasured in subsequent years.

Transactlon costs are apportioned between the tiabitity and equity components of the convertjbte Dreference shares based on the
attocation ol proceeds to the tiabitity and equity components when the instruments are initiatty recognised.

2.1 3 Cash dividend and non-cash distribution to equity holders of the parent
The Company recognises a liabitity to make cash or non-cash distributions to equity holders of the parent when the djstnDutlon rs

2.14 Earnings per share
The basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit/ (toss) attributable to owner's of the company ior the year by
the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during reporting perjod.

The number of shares used in computing dituted earnings/ (loss1 per share comprises the weighted average shares consrdered for
derlving basjc earnlngs/ ((oss) per share and also the weighted average number of equity shares which coutd have been rssueo on
the conversion of atl ditutive potentiat equity shares.

Ditutive potentiat equity shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of the reporting date, unless they have been rssued at
a later date. ln computing dituted earnings per share, onty potentiat equity shares that are djtutive and which either reduces
earnings per share or increase loss per share are inctuded.

2,1 5 Segment reporting
Based on the management approach" as defined in Ind A5 108 - Operating Segments, the Chief Operating Decision Maker
evatuates the company performance and altocates resources based on an analysis of various performance indicators by business
segments.

2. 1 6 Recent Accounting pronouncements
Recent pronouncements Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards
under Companies (lndian Accounting Standards) Rutes as issued from time to time. For the year ended March 31, 2024, MCA has
not notified any new standards or amendments to the existing standards appticabte to the Company.
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F"NNANCIAL ASSETS

Current
Non-Current

Aggregate value of unquoted investments
Aggregate amount of tmpatrment in va[ue of investments

LOANS

INVESTMEN (Amount in '000)

Particulars As at
31st t\,larch 2O24

As at
31st r\ilarch 2023

Valued at amortised cost unless stated otherwise

(B) lnvestment in Unquoted Equity Shares (Fully paid up)

Nit(March31,2023:1,000)Equity Sharesof Re1/-Each,fultypaidupofAttahabad
Waste Processing Company Limited 2.7A

otal 2.70

2.7A

1.70

(Amount in 000)

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financiat assets which generate a fixed or variable interest income for the Company. The
carrying value may be affected by changes in the credit risk of the counterparties.

. Receivabte from the SPML Infra Limited utitamate hotding company of the company. During the year the loan given has beon
impaired by the company, consedering that borrower company has not repaid anv interest nor the principaI since the inception of
the loan.

OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

Particulars As at
31st March 2024

As at
31st March 2023

Unsecurred considered good unless specified
Loan to related party "

Less: Provision for imoairement of loan
60,596.77
60,596.77

60,596.77
60,596.77

Total

in '000)

Particulars .
As at

31st March 2024
As at

31st March 2023

Type of Borrower
- Promoter
- Percentage to the total Loans and Advances in the nature of Loan

60,596.77
100%

60,596.77
100%

Total 60,597.77 60,597.77

in 000)

Particulars As at
31st March 2024

As at
31st March 2023

Fixed Deposit with Maturity more than 12 months. 270.76 23 3.98

Total 270.76 23 3.98
. The Fixed Deposit is liened with the Sales tax Authorities.
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6 TRADE RECEIVABLES

Particulars A5 at
31st Ma.ch 2024

As at
2023

,nscured
consloered qood '
Considered doubtful

1.093.50 i ,093.50

fotal 1.093.50 I Ogt 50

Trade recervabies aqelnq schedute for the Vea{ ended as on March J1, 2024 and ffirch 31, ZO23:

TOTAL

-t
-.j

--,1

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTs

cash at banks earns lnterest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates. Short-term deposits are made for
varying periods of between one day and three months, dependrng on the immedjate cash requirements of the
Croup, and earn interest at the respectjve short-term deDosit.ates.

OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSEST

'The company has handed over lhe possession of Proiect/ptant to Mathura Nagar palika parishad with effect from
18th A4arch 2019 as per lhe interirn order of Arbitrator. Consequentty the the net written down vatue {WDvl. 6rant
receivable, work contract lax receivable and Trade receiables have been shown as receivable from Mathura Nagar
Palika Parishad under this head. The receivabte under this head has been uniLateralty recognised at book vatues.
The consideration receivable for handover of the project/ptant is subject to the finat order of Arbitrator and
confirmation of batance from Mathura Nagar Palika Parishad. During the year the company has obtained the legat
opinion from legal councii, as per the opjnion, the case may not be infavour of the company and accordingry the
management has decided to ntake the provision for these receivabtes.

Ereak up of tinanci.l assetr carried at amortised c6t

.., l

Particulars As at
31st l,tarch 2024

as at
31 st ,rtarch 2023

Cash and cash equivalents
Batances with banks:

On current accounts
Cash on hand

858.68
26.47

512.14
26.47

fotal aas 1l 538.61

Parttculars Asat I Asat
3lst March 2024 | llst March

Unsecured considered sood ul less ctJtec
Other Receivable'
Less: Provision for Doubtful

42,153.08 | 42,153.08
42,153.08 I

Total | 42.153.08

Particulars As at
31st r,^arch 2024

As at
31st ,'^arch 2023

Investments

other Bank BaLances

Cash and cash equivalents
Cther Current Financial Assets

-oans

770.76
885.15

60.596 77

7.to
233.98
538.61

42,153.08
60.596.77

fotal financial assets carried at amortised cost 61,752.68 1.03.525.14
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9 SHARE CAPITAL

Particulars As at 3 I st March 2023

I

I

56,248.00 |

1 5,452.00 l

quity shares ol each, futly pard 5,61,93,000 5,61,93,000

(a) Reconciliation of number of shares

(b) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares
fquity Shares: The company has one class of equity shares having paid-up value of Re.1 per share. Each shareholder is eligibte for one vote per share

hetd. The company declares and pays dividends in Indian Rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approvat of the
sharehotders in the ensuing Annuat General Meeting, except in case of interim dividend. In the event of tiquidation, the equity sharehotders are etigibte
to receive the remaining assets of the Company after distribution of alt preferentiat amounts. The distribution witt be in proportion to the number of
Equity Shares held be the Sharehotder.

As per the records of the company, inctuding its register of sharehotders/members and other dectarations received from sharehotders regarding

beneficial interest, the above sharehotding represents both legal and beneficiat ownerships of shares.

(e) The Company has not allotted any futty paid up equity shares by way of bonus shares nor has bought back any class of equity shares during the period

of five years immediately preceding the batance sheet date nor has issued shares for consideration other than cash.

(f) There are no unpaid catls from director & officers of the company

(g) There are no buy back of shares during the year by the company.

Disclosure of

As at 31st itarch 2024

56,248.00i 5.62,48.000
15,4s2.001 r,sr,sz.ooo

Particulars
Equity Shar Equitv Shares

As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023
Number Rs Number Rs

Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 5,61 ,93,000 56.1 93.00 61,93,000 6.1 93.00
;hares lssued durine the vear 5.00.00.000 50.000
thares bought back durinq the year

;hares outstanding at the end of the Vear 5.61.93.000 56.1 93.00 5,61,93,000 56,193.00

Name of Shareholder and Relationship with the company
As at 3 1 st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023

No. of Shares

held
Amount

No. of Shares

held
Amount

Equity Shares
)PML Intra timited (Ultimate Hotdinq ComDanv) 2,55,000 255.00 2.55.000 255.00
;PML lnfrastructre Limtied {Hoidins ComDanvl 5.53.34.000 55.334.00 5.53.34.000 55,314.00
\llahabad Waste Processine cu I td {Subsidiaru of Hotdinp ComDanv 1 ,000 1.00

shares in
Name of Shareholder As at Jlst March ZO24 As at 31st March 2023

No' of shares 
l* o, ,o,o'n, No. of Shares l-- - .. . ..

I x ot Hotorne
held | -

:quity Shares

;PML Infrastructure Limited 5.53,34,000 | 98.47% 5.53.34.000 | s}.qtt

As at 3 1st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023

International Constructions Ltd

:::. -
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10 OTHER EQUITY

Amount in '000)

Nature and purpose of other reserves:

Securities premium reserve: Securities premium reserve is used to record the premium received on issue of shares bv the
Company. The reserve can be utilised in accordance with the provision of sec 52(2) of Companies Act, 2013.

Equity Portion of Compound Financial Instruments: The preference share has been ctassifed as equity contributlon and the
financial tiabitity as per the terms of preference share hotders agreement and accordingty the equity portion net of taxes has
been shown under the head equity portion of compound financiat instruments.

Retained Earnings: Retained Earnings comprise of the company's accumutated undistributed earnings / (tosses). This Reserve
represents the cumulative profits of the Company and effects of remeasurement of defined benefit obtigations. This Reserve
can be utitised in accordance with the provisjons of the Companies Act, 2013.

BORROWINGS

'The details of liabi

Redeemabte at Rs. 1 oer share

' 9% Non-cumutative Redeemabte Preference Shares: The preference shares are redeemable whotty or partty at the mutual
consent of both the attottee as well the Company. The preference shares shatt carry dividend @ 9% per annum until redeemed
and shatl be payable on non-cumutative basis prior to any dividend or other distribution payabte to equity sharehotders, subject
to the avaitability of adequate distributabte profits for the respective financial year. The preference shares are redeemabte at
par (i.e. Rs. 1/- each).

The preference sharehotders shatt not be entitted to receive nOtice, attend and vote at general meetings of the Company,
except as otherwise provided by the Companies Act, 2013 whereby the holders of such shares woutd be entitled to vote
separately as a ctass, i.e. with respect to voting entitlement of preference sharehotders on matters / issues affecting
substantive rights or liabitities of preference shareholders. The preference sharehotders shatt not be entitted to bonus or right
shares or participate in any profit of the Company except the right of dividend being attached to the preference shares.

11

Particu lars As at
31st March 2024

As at
31st March 2023

lSecurities Premium
I

lOpening 
batance

Additions
Detetions

Equity Portion of Compound Financial Instruments
0pening batance
Additions
Detetions

Retained Earnings

Opening balance

(+) Net Profit/(Net Loss) For the current year

95,267.00

95,267.OO

11 ,717.37

95,267.00

95,267.OO

11,71V.37

11 ,717.37

\1,26,447.08)
(42,827.00)

11,717.37

(77,340.41)

{54,1 06.68)
(1 ,69,274.O7 1.26.447 "O8Total - Other equity (62,289.7O1 (19,462.71

Particu lars As at
31st lilarch 2024

(Amount ln UoU

As at
31st March 2023

Unsecured
Liability component of financial Instrument
Convertibte preference shares "

9% Non-cumutative Redeemable preference Shares of Re. 1 /-.each
9% Non-cumutative Redeemable Preference Shares of Re. 1/- each

1,716.75

1,860.31
1 ,511 .89
1,660.47

fotal 3,576.55 3,192.36

Particu lars Date of Allotment No of Shares Amount
Redeemable

within
maximum of

9% Non-cumutative Redeemabte Preference Shares of Re. 1 /- each . 31 March 201 2 42,52,000 4,252.00
20 years from
the date of
attotment

)% Non-cumutative Redeemabte Preference Shares of Re. 1 /- each . 31 March 2018 91,00,000 9,1 00.00
20 years from
the date of
atlotment

otal
1 ,33, s2,000 1 3.3 5 2.00
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12 BORROWINGS

. Loans are repayabte on demano and the same ts interest free.

13 TRADE PAYABLES

Terms and conditions of the above financial tiabitities:
- Trade payabtes are non-interest bearing and are normally settted on 60-day terms
- Other payables are non-interest bearing and have an average term of six months
- Interest payable is normatty settted quarterty throughout the financiat year
- For terms and conditions with retated parties, refer to Note 31

For exptanations on the Group's credit risk management processes, refer to Note 32.

Trade Payabte ageing schedute for the year ended as on March 31,2024 and March 31,2023:

14 OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

(Amount in'000)

BORROWINGS

ln

Farticu lars
As at

31st March 2024
As at

31st March 2023
Unsecured

From Related parties' 2.1 68.06 '2,10V 
"58

fotal 2,tr68.06 2,107.58

Particu lars
As at

31st March 2024
As at

31st March 2023

Trade Payables :
Total outstanding dues of micro and smatt enterprises
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro
and sma[[ enterprises

Total

113.97 25.93

113,92 25.93

Particu lars As at 31st March 2024 and 31st March 2023
Outstandinq for followinq per ods from due date of Davment

Less than 1 year 1 -2 years 2-3 years More than 3

vears
Total

) MSME

ii) Others 113.92 113.92
25.93 25.93

iii) DisDuted Dues - MSME

iv) Disputed Dues -Others

Total 113.92 1 13.92
25.93 25.93

Break up of financial liabilities carried at amortised cost
in'000)

Particu lars
As at

31st March 2024
As at

3'lst March 2023

Borrowings
Liability component of financiatinstrument
frade Pavables

2,168.06
3,576.55

113.97

7,107 .58
3,197.36

25.93
Total 5,8 58.54 5.3 25.88

in'000)

Particu lars
As at

31st March 2024
As at

31st March 2023

Audit Fees Payabte

fax deducted at source payabte
23.60

3. s0

1 1.80

3.25

Total 27.10 15.05
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15 OTHER INCOME

(Amount in 000)

,I6 FINANCE COSTS

,I7 OTHER EXPENSES

' Payment to Auditors

INCOME TAX A5SETS (NET)

The following table provides the details of income tax assets and liabilities as at 31 March 2024 and 31 March
20231

Amount in

Particulars As at
31st March 2024

As at
31st March 2023

a) Income Tax Assets

b) Current Income Tax Liabititres
Net Balance

606 .52

606.52

ii) The gross movement in the currebt tax asset/ ( Liabitity) for the years ended 31 March ZOZ4 and 31 March 202j
is as follows:

Particulars For the year ended
31st March 2024

For the year ended
31st March 2023

Net current income tax asset at the beginning
Income Tax paid

Current Income tax exoense
Income tax on other comprehensive income
Net current income tax asset at the end

606.52
(606. s2)

1,30't.55
(69s.03)

606.52

18

i)

Particulars For the year ended
31st March 2024

For the year ended
31st March 2023

Finance Income

Interest Income
Liabitities No Longer Required written back
lnterest Income on lT Refund

36.78

33"97

n.77 
|

7 ,3e6 "46 tr

5.20 
|

Totdl 70.75 v,425.43

Particu lars
For the year ended

31st March 2024

(Amount 1n 000)
For the year ended

31st March 2023

nterest on Statutory Dues

=inance cost on financial tiabitity of preference Shares 384.19
170.42

347.04
Total 384,19 512.46

Particulars For the year ended
31st lilarch 2024

(Amount tn UUU

For the year ended
31st March 2023

Rates & Taxes
Audit Fees -

Misce(taneous Expenses

ProfessionaI Charges
Loss on sate of Investement
Provision for DoubtfuI receivabtes
lmpairment Cost on financial Assets

61 .74

1 1.80

1 55.84
1.70

42,153.09

447.15

1 1.80

5.98
49.04

60,596.77
Total 42,384.17 61 ,105.74

Amount in '000)

Particulars For the year ended
31st March 2024

For the year ended
31st March 2023

As Auditors
- Audit fees(inctusive of GST) 11.80 1 1.80

Total 11.80 1 1.80

For the year ended
31st lriarch 2024

For the year ended
31st rv{arch 2023

lncome Tax exoense in the

Current income taxes
Deferred income taxes
Income tax expenses (net)



/IIATHURA I.IAGAR WASTE PROCESSING COMPANY LIMITED
l{otes to financial statements for the year ending March l"l,ZOZ4

iv. Components of deferred income tax assets and liabilities arising on account of Temporary differences are:

. Taxes: Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probabte that taxabte profit
will be avaitable against which the tosses can be utitised. Significant management judgement is required to
determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the tikety timing and the levef of
tuture taxabte profits together with future tax ptanning strategies. Considering the certainity of the future profits,
the company has not recoginised the deferred tax asset on the losses carned forward.
.. The diffrence on account of provision for doubtfut receivabtes are not considered for the purpose of catcutation of
deffered tax considering the uncertainity of reatisation.

':., ,,t,

,: rl
.-- rl

.-r, li
),t/
/'

Particulars For the year ended
31st ,v{arch 2024

For the year ended
31st March 2023

Deterred income tax liabilitv
Timing difference on equity portion of preference shares
Deferred income tax asset
Business losslunabsorbed depreciation .
Others -.

Total deferred tax liabilities

7,460.48 2,557.18

2,460"48 ?,5 57.1 8
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,UATHURA NAGAR WASTE PROCESSING COMPANY LIMITED
Notes to financiat statements for the year ending March 31,2024

19 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Capital and Other Commitments:
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for: Rs. Nil
(PY-Rs. Nit)

Earning Per Share

Basic EPS amounts are catculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the
pareni by the weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding during the year.

Dituted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit attributabte to equity hotders of the parent (after

adjusting for interest on the convertibte. preference shares) by the weighted average number of Equity

shares outstanding during the year ptus the weighted average number of Equity shares that woutd be issued

on conversion of alt the ditutive potential Equity shares into Equity shares.

The fotlowing reflects the income and share data used in the basic and dituted EPS comoutations:

Particulars For the year ended
31st March 2024

For the year ended
31st March 2023

let profit avaitable for Eouitv Sharehotders (42,827.001 (54,106.681
/Veighted Average number of Equity shares 5.61.93.00( 3.11.74.507
lasic and Dituted Earnines Per Share @.761 1.741

22 Leases

The company has no lease transactions.

The Company has incurred Rs Nit (PY - Rs Nit) during the year towards mimimum lease payment.

23 Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions
The preparation of the financiat statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabitities, and the
accompanying disctosures, and the disctosure of contingent tiabitities. Uncertainty about these assumpttons
and estimates coutd resutt in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets

or liabitities affected in future oeriods.

Judgements: In the process of apptying the company's accounting policies, management has made the
fottowing judgements, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financral

statements:

Estimates and assumptions: The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation

uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the

carrying amounts of assets and tiabilities within the next financial year, are described betow. The company

based its assumptions and estimates on parameters avaitable when the financial statements were prepared.

Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market

changes or ctrcumstances arising that are beyond the control of the company. Such changes are reftected in

Particulars As at 31st March
2024

As at 3'tst March
2023

Ctaims against Companies not acknowledged as debt
Ctaims towards tiquidated damages not acknowtedged as debts b1

the Company Against the above, debts of the like amounts ar€
withhetd by the customers. However, the Company expects nc

materiat tiabitrty to accrue on account of these claims

Disputed Statutory Demands
Guarentee exctuding FinanciaI Guarentee
Corporate guarantees given to banks for financial assistance
extended to subsidiaries and other bodies coroorate

,\ [ii
! ztl

/ ili;iil.'/

the assumptions when they occur.



i ATHURA NAGAR WASTE PROCESSING COr',iPANY t_ti,ilTED
Notes to financial statements for the year ending March 31,ZOZ4

lmpairment of non-financia[ assets: lmpairment exists when the carrying vatue of an asset or cash
generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair va[ue less costs of disposat
and its vatue in use" The fair va[ue less costs of disposaI catcutation is based on avaitab[e data from binding
sates transactions, conducted at arm's length, for simitar assets or observable market prices less

incrementaI costs for disposing of the asset. The vatue in use calcutation is based on a DCF modet. The cash

ftows are oerived from the budget for the next five years and do not inctude restructuring activities that the
company ls not yet committed to or significant future lnvestments that witt enhance the asset's
performance of the CGU being tested. The recoverabte amount is sensitive to the discount rate used for the
DCF modet as wett as the expected future cash-rnflows and the growth rate used for extrapo[atlon purposes.
These estimates are most relevant to goodwitt and other intangibtes with'indefinlte useful lives recogn]sed
by the company.

Taxes: Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax tosses to the extent that it is probabte that taxaDte

profit witt be avaitabte against which the losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement is

required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the tikeLy

timing and the [eve[ of future taxabte profits together with future tax ptanning strategies. Considering the

certainity of the future profits, the deferred tax asset on carry forward losses have not been recoqnised.

Fair vatue measurement of financial instruments: When the fair values of financial assets and financrar
liabitities recorded in the ba[ance sheet cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active markers,
their fair value is measured using vatuation techniques inctuding the DCF modet. The inputs to these modets
are taken from observabte markets where possible, but where this is not feasibte, a degree of judgement is

requtred rn estabtishing fair vatues. Judgements include considerations of inputs such as tiguidity risk, credit
risk and votatitity. Changes in assumptions about these factors coutd affect the reDorted fair vatue of
financiaI instruments.

24 Emptoyee Benefits: The company does not have any emptoyees on rotts as at 31st March 2024 and
accordingty the disctosure as required by Ind AS 19 is not appticabte.

25 There are no MSME trade payable at the end of the year Rs. Nit (py - Rs. Nit).

26 A disctosure with respect to segment reporting is not appticabte, since the Company does not have more
than one reoortabte seqment.

27 Foreign Currency Earnings And Outgo Rs. Nit (PY - Rs. Nit).

28 There are no reported foreign currency exposures that have not been hedged by a derivative instrument or
otherwise, hence the disclosure of the same is not made.

29 clF value of imports Rs. Nit (PY- Rs. Nit).
? -'.': -'

i wrrt'

P8l!u\r



.9-
3
';,// .:!

9i i-o r

Er ilE\.i;

3'i/ :?7. (u/ ..'s ,l. -:c: =II atll
i 5\iA.-c '\r
.9 

t\

i(o>
IL

fg
iQ-

qJ

qJ
L
(u

C

o-

-

q)

on

E
x
O

L

(o
4.,

(o

Uc
(g-
.E

(J
(o
o
-
CJ

-Y

L
OJ

-
OJ

6

OJ

-dFi:
.(t).- o-

=o
&. (l
., o-
."]!
(}I q)
UPNrc
-c 0J
(JL

5-c-tt<tu

, iu2
./\ i

) a.l
t
)n
1 q,,

!'E
.X
:a)
lT)tLL>\
t-o
lE;G,i3

u

.E
rg
CJ
L

o
!
(u

'6
.LJ

CJ
L

P-.(,

ad
o-

;.
f
aO-

CJ

L.

U
(u

p

-l

(ol

>rl
c!
(gl
O-l
Fl
=l(J!

!;

$(
c{ 'l
crl
N:

-iUL+(o(<(
t;r_(

0r!
lJ fr

Cu
vl
LF
(g

u2
gCl

;tqJ c\

-ol
>\L
d(ii=

li {)

cv
q, q,,t

AI

(o;
>;
e'q
e0J
gL(o>
qp
nr LUP
cs
iaro 0) U
-(oon;
- v

E>
L-

9:l.vo-
GUc>
.9'6jrU
UO(oL

-Eo.bc
on>-CJLJo

c(Utro)
(oC
a(o

(d0n

E8
o-

;-o
cJ q.'
6>Oru
a0JYL
PE
CFo
roc
>o

,nY'-(JJ-.='F2,^
LEiJ
G'Lao92 0
U=o
.o., c-qr-o y
L(gE.
r F Qt
P!\
'=OJ.J(
<LCJ
;,a^-E g?ro
o.yc-Ef(o.
H x E;Ul-Y/--.--
9qJ.rEEhI

\F=Yi
olu;';'
-7E.iF*LI6.:'- t'E =P 

"
! I|Ur
-LJO.YYrullY(
c E 3t
-Fgl
r^ i: c-E" =ibe E;l-Fro(

u

aA
o
l-
f
tn
o
(,
ttl

i5
P
L
|o

CL

!oU
C'

a)
E,
c
o
v
N
tl

E
C,

Io
rrl
P
Cvc,

NERP
f

aY) ctd-O
!,IE L
FLo

=E 
5

JonE
>c .=1fr 

'<CA,go u<LCC)O.oog E !9n, I q c'2t i, u u E x06*, -* lg F t 
=rrL = H = FUe d= HF E 3o y' o = d F )5 ;E*E d g ;E EE .E'g

-*9 6 'A .FS o-5 !E
HH 6 c b: Ei o=?# - 3 ry? 3E *e
=; 4 F hi enE iE4:s f h' :i €r .Er6'q o q de ;^= E=
a: lrr: YO -U; =a;: F
<+ J = 

.=

=e 
p,

Tt^
E; OaoaY)
=z

l6
l0J
IL
l(ot-
l(/l
lcrIU
to
IL
t(ul9JO
lo-IL
ls
lonlc
l€t-
l(gIPl@I=

l5
lfloIF
l(s
lor

IU
t'-
IP

-
OJ

!
on

=
(g

3
P

o
E
ro
(u

F

(u
t,

-roo

!o
TJ

oo
rn
F-

(\

o(J
(o

o
@
I

oo

s.NoN
U
t_
IU

=P
F
n4
Eo
!
Co
L
.o
o,

o
E
on
C
L
f
!
C

o
E.!

o
P
|.J
.U
ttl

('
F

gO
Ossc
c@-

:3Fs>.=-o.or- o-o-E

(o

(o
LJ
o
Lo

all

Po
dJ(L
2Eo:qE

E

o
U
Co!>oE><'6
dJU
2d.
C,oJ

o
U

L
o

CL

E
(u
P

E:
rd

F-
-
=ttl

fn(\
c!
-(J
L

=
aa

(o
6

rn(\or{
U
L
(It

=
rn
(o

E
J
c)

p
U
f

L

-
-,
=o-
t,



MATHURA NAGAR WASTE PROCESSING COMPANY LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the year ending March 31,2024

3'l Fair values
The carrying value and farr vatue of financiat instruments by category:

Assets and liabilities carried at amortised cost

(Amount in'000

There are no assets and liabilities which have been carried at fair value through the profit and loss account

There are no assets and liabilities which have been carried at fair value through the other comprehenssive income.

The management assessed that cash and cash equivatents, trade receivabtes, trade payabtes, and other current tiabitities
approximate their carrying amounts largety due to the short-term maturities of these instruments.

The fair vatues of the unquoted equity shares have been estimated using a DCF model. The vatuation requires management to make
certain assumptions about the model inputs, inctuding forecast cash flows, discount rate, credit risk and votatitity. The probabilities
of the various estimates within the range can be reaionabty assessed and are used in management's estimate of fair vatue for these
unquoted equity investments.

The fair vatues of the Group's interest-bearing borrowings and loans are determined by using DCF method using discount rate that
reflects the issuer's borrowing rate as at the end of the reporting period. The own nonperformance risk as at 31 March 2024 was

assessed to be insignificant.

32 Fair value hierarchy

Level 1: Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or tiabitities

Level 2: Significant observabte inputs other than quoted prices inctuded in levet 1 that are observable for the asset or tiabitity, either
directty (i.e. as prices) orindirectty (i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3: Significant unobservabte inputs for the assets or liabitities that are not based on observabte market data (unobservabte
inputs).

in'000

Farticu lars Carryinq Value Fair Value
As at 31st March

2024
As at 31st March

2023
As at 3lst rilarch

2024
As at 31st March

2023

Financial assets
Investment5

Other FinanciaI Assets
Cash and cash equivatents
Other Current FinanciaI Assets
Loans

?70"76
885.1 5

60.596"77

2.70
233.98
538.61

42, l 53.08
60,596"77

274.76
885.1 5

z.7a
233.98
538.61

42.153.08

Total 61-752.68 1,03,525.1 5 1.155.92 42,928.38

Financial liabilities
Borrowings
Interest accrued and due on borrowings
Liabitity component of financiatinstrument
Trade Payables

2,1 68.06

3,576.55
113.92

2,107.58

3,192.36
25.93

2,1 68.06

113.92

2,107.58

3,1 92.36
25"93

Total 5.858.52 5,325.86 5,858.52 5.32s.86

Particulars Fatr value
hierarchy

(Level)

Fair value
As at 31 March

2024
As at 31 March

2023
A Financial Assets
a) Measured at amortised cost

Investment In Unquoted Equity Shares (Futty Paid Up)
LOans

Fixed Deposit with Maturity more than 12 months
Trade Receivabtes
Cash And Cash Equivalents
Other Receivabte

B FinancialLiabilities
a) Measured at amortised cost

2

1

1

1

1

L

1

770.76
1,093.50

885.1 5

5,744.61
113.92

2.7Q

23 3.98
1 ,093. 50

538.61

42,1 53.08

5,299.94

.'.: w.?!'?3-
9-.-'cz

/ y'nq
tt.y', ti..c.

-----'/.:
I 

^ ^r(*',

l'Were no transfers between Level 'l, 2 and Level 3 during the year ended 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023. , ir"" 
'l€(: ii;

ioD'. 
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I'IATHURA NAGAR WASTE PROCESSING COMPANY LIMITED
Notes to financial statement5 for the year ending r{arch 31,2024

33 Financial risk management objectives and policies
The Company's pnncipal financial tiabitities, other than derivatives, compnse ioans and borrowings, trade and other payables, and financiat
guarantee contracts. The main purpose of these financiat tiabitities is to finance the Group's operations and to proyide guarantees to support its
operations. The 6roup's principat financiat assets include toans, trade and other receivabtes, and cash and cash equivalents that oerive directly
from its operatjons.

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity nsk. The Company's senror management oversees the management of these
risks. The Company's senior management is supportdd by a financial risk committee that advises on financial risks and the appropnate financial
risk governance framework for the company. The financiat risk committee provides assurance to the company's senior management that the
company's financiat risk activities are governed by appropriate poticies and procedures and that financial risks are identified, measured and
managed rn accordance with the company's policies and risk objectives.

I'larket nsk

Market nsk js the nsk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financjaI instrument witl fluctuate because of changes in marker prices. Market
nsk compnses three types of risk: interest rate nsk, currency risk and other pnce nsk, such as equity price nsk and commodity nsk. Flnancta(
lnstruments affected by market nsk inctude toans and borrowings, deposits, FVTOCI investments and deriyative financial instruments.

Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair vatue or future cash flows of a financiaI instrument witt ftuctuate because of changes in marker jnterest

rates. The company's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the company's tong-term debt obtigations with
floating interest rates. The company manages its interest rate risk by haying a batanced portfolio of fixed and variable rate toans and

borrowings.

Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that counterparty witl not meet its obtigations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial
loss. The company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarity trade receivables) and from its financing activities, inctuding
deposits with banks and financiat institutions and other financiaI instruments.

Trade receivables
Customer credit risk is managed by the Company's established policy, procedures and controL reiating to customer credit risk management.
Credit quatity of a customer rs assessed based on an extensive credit rating scorecard and individuat credit timits are defined In accordance with
thjs assessment. Outstandjng customer receivabtes are regularly monitored. At 31 March 2024, the company had outstanding dues recetvabte
from one customers (31 March 2023: one customersr,

An impairrnent analysis is performed at each reporting date on an individuaL customer basis. The company evatuates the concentration of risk
with respect to trade receivabtes as low, as the the customer is Government body and operate in largely independent markets.

Liquidity risk
The Company nonitors jts risk of a shortage of funds using a liquidity ptanning toot.

The tabte beLow summarises the maturity profite of the Company's financial liabitities based on contractuat undiscounted payments:

(Amount in 000)

As at 3 1 st March 2024 On Demand Less than 3

months
Less than 3

months to t 2

months

More than 'l

year
Total

Borrowings (other than convertible preference shares)
Interest accrued on borrowings
Liabitity component of financial instrument
Trade and other oavabtes

2,168.06

13.9?
3,576.55

2,168.06

3,576.55
113.92

Capital management
For the purpose of the Company's capital management, capital inctudes issued equity capital, convertibte preference shares, share premium and

atl other equity reserues attributabte to the equity hotders of the parent. The primary obtective of the Company's capjtat management i5 lo

maximise the sharehotder vatue. The company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in tight of changes in economic conditions

and the requirements of the financial covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the company may adjust the dividend payment to

shareholders, return capitat to shareholders or issue new shares. The company monitors capitat using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided

by totat capital ptus net debt. The Company includes within net debt, interest bearing loans and borrowings, trade and other payables, less cash

and cash equivalents.

ln
Particulars As at 31st As at 31st

Eorrowings other than convertibte preference shares
Liabitity component of financia( instrument
Trade payables

Other payabtes
Less: cash and cash eouivalents

z, I oo.uo
3,576.55

'113.92

(885.1 5)

t, tvt .)6
3,192.36

25.93

(538.61

{et Debt 4,973.38 4.787.26

Equity
Security Premium
Equity Portion of Compound FinancjaI Instrument
0ther Eouitv

56,1 93.00

95,267.OO

11 ,717.37
1.69.274.071

56,1 93.00
95,267.OO

11,717.37
1,26,447.08

!aDital and net debt (6,O96,7O 35,730.30
Searinq ratio (4.43 o.12

In order to achieve this overatl objective, the Company's capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets financial

covenants attached to the interest'bearing toans and borrowings that define capitaI structure requirements. Ereaches in meeting the financial

covenants woutd permit the bank to immediatety catl toans and borrowings. There have been breaches in the financiat covenants of interest-

bearing loans during the year.

34

As at 31st March 2023 On Demand Less than 3

months
Less than 3

months to 1 2

months

More than 1

year
Total

Borrowings (other than convertible preference shares)
Interest accrued on borrowings
Liability component of financiaUnstrument
Trade and other Davables

2,107.58

75.93
J,192.36

7,107.58

3,192.36
75.93

were made in the objectives, poUcies or processes for managing capital during the years ended 31 March 2024 and 31 March
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